
 

Page 1 of 3 

 City of Gardner, Massachusetts 
Office of the City Council 

~~~~~~~ 
CALENDAR FOR THE MEETING 

of 
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 7, 2022 - AMENDED 

*Remotely via ZOOM 
7:30 P.M. 

 
 

ORDER OF BUSINESS  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. CALL OF THE ROLL OF COUNCILLORS 
 
** OATH OF OFFICE FOR COUNCILLOR ELECT JAMES BOONE 
 
III. OPENING PRAYER 
 
IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
V. ANNOUNCEMENT OF OPEN MEETING RECORDINGS 
 

Any person may make a video or audio recording of an open session of a meeting, or may transmit the meeting through any medium, subject to reasonable 
requirements of the chair as to the number, placement and operation of equipment used so as not to interfere with the conduct of the meeting.  Any person 
intending to make such recording shall notify the Chair forthwith.  All documents and exhibits used or referenced at the meeting must be submitted in 
duplicate to the City Clerk, as they become part of the Meeting Minutes. 

 
VI. READING OF MINUTES OF PRIOR MEETING(S) 

• December 20, 2021 Regular Meeting 
• January 3, 2022 Regular Meeting 

 
VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

VIII. COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR  
 
 APPOINTMENTS 
 

10598 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Christine Oliva Kumar 
to the position of City Assessor, for term expiring January 19, 2025. 
(Appointments Committee) 

 
10599 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of James Wood to the 

position of Airport Commission Member, for term expiring January 19, 2025. 
(Appointments Committee)  

 
10600 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Robert R. Swartz, Jr. to 

the position of Airport Commission Member, for term expiring January 19, 
2025. (Appointments Committee) 

 

 



 

Page 2 of 3 

APPOINTMENTS – continued 
 
10601 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of David Urquhart to the 

position of Airport Commission Member, for term expiring January 19, 2025. 
(Appointments Committee) 

 
ORDINANCES 
 
10602 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Section 8, Chapter 

390, Entitled “Fire Department Fee Schedule.” (Finance Committee) 
 
10603 – An Ordinance to Amend Sections of the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 

390, Entitled “Fees.” (Finance Committee) 
 
10604 – An Ordinance to Amend Chapter 567 of the Code of the City of Gardner, 

Entitled Streets and Sidewalks. (Finance Committee) 
 

ORDERS 
 
10605 – An Order Appropriating $22,200.00 from Free Cash to South Gardner Fire 

Station Abate and Design Project Account. (Finance Committee) 
 

10606 – An Order Appropriating $30,000.00 from Free Cash to Uptown Rotary 
Improvements Account. (Finance Committee) 

 
COMMUNICATIONS 
 
10607 – A Measure Accepting MGL 140, §139C, Waiver of Dog License Fees for 

Individuals Aged Seventy Years or Older. (Finance Committee) 
 
10608 – An Order of Taking for a Parcel of Land located at the intersection of Central 

Street, Woodland Avenue, Green Street, and Pearl Street, commonly known 
as “Parcel 2” of the Uptown Rotary. (Finance Committee)  

 
 

IX. PETITIONS, APPLICATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS, ETC. 
 
 10609 – An Application by The Witches Wardrobe, for a License to Deal in 

Second Hand Articles. (Safety Committee) 
 
 10610 – An Application by The Witches Wardrobe, for a Fortune Teller License. 

(Safety Committee) 
 
 10611 – An Open Meeting Law Complaint filed by Scott Joseph Graves. 
 
 
 



 

Page 3 of 3 

 
   
X.    REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES    
 
 APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE 
 

10595 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Ethan Kolodny to the 
position of Assistant City Solicitor, for term expiring January 3, 2023. (In the 
City Council and referred to Appointments Committee 1/18/2022) 

 
  
XI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS AND MATTERS FOR RECONSIDERATION 
 
 
XII. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 
XIII. CLOSING PRAYER 
 
  
XIV. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Items listed on the Council Calendar are those reasonably anticipated by the Council President to be discussed at the meeting.  Not all items listed 
may in fact be discussed and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law.   
 
*Subject to the law passed and signed by the Governor on June 16, 2021, this meeting of the City of Gardner Council Meeting will be conducted via 
remote participation to the greatest extent possible. For this meeting, members of the public who wish to watch the meeting may do so in the following 
manner: watching on the City of Gardner YouTube page. No in-person attendance of members of the public will be permitted, but every effort will be 
made to ensure that the public can adequately access the proceedings in real time, via technological means. In the event that we are unable to do so, 
despite best efforts, we will post on the City’s website an audio or video recording, transcript, or other comprehensive record of proceedings as soon 
as possible after the meeting. 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF DECEMBER 20, 2021 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Page 1 of 11 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

 
Regular Meeting of the City Council was held in the Council Chambers, Room 219, City 
Hall, on Monday evening, December 20, 2021. 

  
CALL TO ORDER 

 

Council President Kazinskas called the meeting to order at 7:30 o’clock p.m.  
 

CALL OF THE ROLL 
 

City Clerk Titi Siriphan called the Roll of Members. Eleven (11) Councillors were present 
including Councillor James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Elizabeth Kazinskas, Scott Joseph Graves, Judy 
Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh.  
 

OPENING PRAYER 
 

President Kazinskas led the Council in reciting the Opening Prayer. 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

President Kazinskas led the Council in reciting the “Pledge of Allegiance”. 
 

OPEN MEETING RECORDING & PUBLIC RECORDS ANNOUNCEMENT 
 

President Kazinskas announced to the assembly that the Open Meeting Recording and Public 
Records Announcement. Any person may make a video or audio recording of an open session 
of a meeting or may transmit the meeting through any medium subject to reasonable 
requirements of the chair as to the number placement and operation of equipment used so as 
not to interfere with the conduct of the meeting. Any person intending to make such 
recordings shall notify the Chair forthwith. All documents and exhibits used or referenced at 
the meeting must be submitted in duplicate to the chair as they become part of the meeting 
minutes pursuant to General Law Chapter 38 Section 20. 
 

READING & ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES 
 

On a motion by Councillor Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor James Walsh, it was 
voted on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors James 
Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, George Tyros and James Walsh to waive the reading and to accept the minutes as 
printed of November 15, 2021. Councillors Scott Joseph Graves and Judy Mack abstained from 
the vote as they were absent from the meeting that day. 
 

 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF DECEMBER 20, 2021 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Page 2 of 11 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 
APPOINTMENTS 

 
#10575 
Reporting from the Finance Committee, Councillor Ronald Cormier informed the Council 
that the Committee was in favor of the appointment. Mr. Stephen Cormier is a new 
appointment who is replacing Irene Dubzinski.  
 
On a motion by Councillor Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor James Walsh, on 
recommendation of the Finance Committee, it was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, 
President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig 
Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Scott Joseph Graves, 
Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh to confirm the following Appointment received 
from the Mayor: 
  
Stephen Cormier to the position of Housing Authority Member, for term expiring December 
7, 2026. 
 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 
ORDERS 

 
#10582 
Reporting from the Finance Committee, Councillor James Walsh informed the Council that 
this appropriation was needed for the Wayside Pond/Dam Project. It is the City’s matching 
portion and the dam is listed in critical condition. 
 
On a motion by Councillor James Walsh and seconded by Councillor Ronald Cormier, on 
recommendation of the Finance Committee, it was voted on call of the roll, eleven (11) yeas, 
President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig 
Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Scott Joseph Graves, 
Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh that the following Order ought to pass: 
 

AN ORDER APPROPRIATING FROM FREE CASH TO WAYSIDE POND/DAM 
PROJECT ACCOUNT 

 
ORDERED: That there be and is hereby appropriated the sum of Forty-One 
Thousand Five Hundred Seventy-Five Dollars and No Cents ($41,575.00) from Free 
Cash to the Wayside Pond/Dam Account. 

 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF DECEMBER 20, 2021 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Page 3 of 11 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

#10583 
Reporting from the Finance Committee, Councillor Ronald Cormier informed the Council 
that this appropriation was for the old Fontaine Factory located at 14 Leamy Street. It is a 
city owned building since 2017 and is in serious condition. 
 
On a motion by Councillor Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor James Walsh, on 
recommendation of the Finance Committee, it was voted on call of the roll, eleven (11) yeas, 
President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig 
Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Scott Joseph Graves, 
Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh that the following Order ought to pass: 
 

AN ORDER APPROPRIATING FROM FREE CASH TO THE BUILDING 
DEMOLITION ACCOUNT.  

 
ORDERED: That there be and is hereby appropriated the sum of Three Thousand 
Dollars and No Cents ($30,000.00) from Free Cash to the Building Demolition 
Account. 

 
#10584 
Reporting from the Finance Committee, Councillor James Walsh informed the Council that 
the GRA took ownership of the property located at the corner of Connor and Parker Street.  
It is in the process of rehabilitation to bring the building to market rate housing units. 
  
Councillor Scott Joseph Graves was not in favor of the appropriation. He would like to see an 
itemization for the $80,000.00. 
 
On a motion by Councillor James Walsh and seconded by Councillor Ronald Cormier, on 
recommendation of the Finance Committee, it was voted on call of the roll, ten (10) yeas, 
President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig 
Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Judy Mack, George 
Tyros and James Walsh; one (1) nay, Councillor Scott Joseph Graves; that the following 
Order ought to pass: 
 

AN ORDER APPROPRIATING FROM FREE CASH TO THE PARKER STREET 
REHABILITION PROJECT ACCOUNT.  

 
ORDERED: That there be and is hereby appropriated the sum of Eighty Thousand 
Dollars and No Cents ($80,000.00) from Free Cash to the Parker Street Rehabilitation 
Project Account. 

 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF DECEMBER 20, 2021 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Page 4 of 11 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

#10585 
Reporting from the Finance Committee, Councillor James Walsh informed the Council that 
the Committee was in favor of the appropriation. The open space plan was done in 2015 and 
it is best practice to renew the plan every 5 years so that the City can apply for grants. 
 
Councillors Scott Joseph Graves and James Boone were not in favor of the appropriation. 
Councillor Scott Joseph Graves said “we have a Community Development Department, why 
don’t we use someone in-house instead of hiring consultants.” 
 
On a motion by Councillor James Walsh and seconded by Councillor Ronald Cormier, on 
recommendation of the Finance Committee, it was voted on call of the roll, nine (9) yeas, 
President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald 
Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James 
Walsh; two (2) nays, Councillors James Boone and Scott Joseph Graves; that the following 
Order ought to pass: 
 

AN ORDER APPROPRIATING FROM FREE CASH TO OPEN SPACE PLAN 
ACCOUNT.  

 
ORDERED: That there be and is hereby appropriated the sum of Thirty Thousand 
Dollars and No Cents ($30,000.00) from Free Cash to the Open Space Plan Account. 

 
#10586 
Councillor Ronald Cormier took the chair so that President Kazinskas could step down and 
participate in discussion for items # 10586 and #10587. 
 
Reporting from the Finance Committee, President Elizabeth Kazinskas informed the Council 
that this PARC Grant (Parkland Acquisitions and Renovations for Communities) is referred 
to the Bailey Brook Project, which is in Ward 2. This grant is for Phase 2 of the grant that 
will go towards multi-use court (not soccer field) and playground for children under 5 years 
old. The appropriation is the City’s matching portion for design. 
 
On a motion made by President Kazinskas and seconded by Councillor James Walsh, on 
recommendation of the Finance Committee, it was voted on call of the roll, eleven (11) yeas, 
President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig 
Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Scott Joseph Graves, 
Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh that the following Order ought to pass: 
 

AN ORDER APPROPRIATING FROM FREE CASH TO THE PARC BAILEY BROOK 
PROJECT.  



 
REGULAR MEETING OF DECEMBER 20, 2021 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Page 5 of 11 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

 
ORDERED: That there be and is hereby appropriated the sum of Thirty Nine 
Thousand Eight Hundred Dollars and No Cents ($39,800.00) from Free Cash to the 
Parc Bailey Brook Project Account. 

 
COMMUNICATIONS 

 
#10587 
Reporting from the Finance Committee, President Elizabeth Kazinskas informed the Council 
that this Resolution is required by PARC to show in good faith effort that the City will 
continue the project. 
 
On a motion made by President Kazinskas and seconded by Councillor James Walsh, on 
recommendation of the Finance Committee, it was voted on call of the roll, eleven (11) yeas, 
President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig 
Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Scott Joseph Graves, 
Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh that the following Resolution ought to pass: 
 

A RESOLUTION TO FILE AND ACCEPT GRANTS WITH AND FROM 
THECOMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS, EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF 
EMERGENCY AND ENVIRONMENTAL AFFAIRS FOR THE PARKLAND 
ACQUISITIONS AND RENOVATIONS FOR COMMUNITIES (PARC) PROGRAM 
FOR DEVELOPMENT OF BAILEY BROOK PARK 

 

Whereas: The land recently acquired for the purpose of developing a community park in 
West Gardner will by and far be a community-wide asset and that the preservation 
and improvements of this facility are a City priority as evidenced in the most 
recent Open Space and Recreation Plan; and 

  
Whereas: The land is dedicated to park and recreation purposes under M.G.L. Chapter 45, 

Section 3; and 
 
Whereas: The design and development of a park will provide substantial public benefits and 

greatly enhance this land and with improved site access, recreational amenities, 
path systems, parking, and universal access, etc.; and 

 
Whereas: The main focus of the project is to fund the design and construction of a 

multipurpose recreational area. The recreational facilities will include a 
universally accessible play trail and hard courts (basketball, tennis, pickleball); 
and 

 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF DECEMBER 20, 2021 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Page 6 of 11 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Whereas: The project is viewed as a series of phases, to be implemented over time, by 
priority as fiscal resources are available, with the intention of securing grant 
funding, when and if available, to assist in this effort; and 

 
Whereas: The Executive Office of Energy and Environmental Affairs (EEA) is offering 

reimbursable grants to cities and towns to support the preservation and restoration 
of urban parks through the Parkland Acquisitions and Renovations for 
Communities (PARC) grant program (301 CMR 5.00); and 

 
Whereas: Phase II of the Bailey Brook Park Design & Development Project will cost a total 

of up to $582,800 (Five Hundred and Eighty Two Thousand and Eight Hundred 
Dollars) of which $380,000 (Three Hundred and Eighty Thousand Dollars) has 
been awarded for construction and will be reimbursable through the PARC grant 
program and of which $39,800 (Thirty Nine Thousand and Eight Hundred 
Dollars) will be allocated in FY22 toward the design of the Park, and $543,000 
(Five Hundred and Forty Three Thousand Dollars) will be allocated in FY23 
toward the construction of the park; and 

 
 
Whereas: The Mayor of the City of Gardner will accept grant funds under the PARC grant 

program (301 CMR 5.00) and the City of Gardner will borrow, appropriate and 
expend up to Two Hundred and Two Thousand and Eight Hundred and 00/100 
Dollars ($202,800) for the Design ($39,800) & Phase II Development ($163,00) 
of Bailey Brook Park to be managed by the City Public Works Department, as 
open space parkland under Article 97 of the amendments to the Constitution of 
the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, under their duty and responsibility to the 
care and custody of City parks and playgrounds. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 
 

1. That the Mayor, as the Chief Executive Officer of the City, be and is hereby 
authorized to file and accept grants from the Executive Office of Energy and 
Environmental Affairs; and 
 

2. That the Mayor be and is hereby authorized to take such other actions as are 
necessary to carry out the terms, purposes, and conditions of this grant to be 
administered by the Department of Community Development and Planning; 
and 

 
3. That this resolution shall take effect upon passage. 

 
 
 
 
   



 
REGULAR MEETING OF DECEMBER 20, 2021 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Page 7 of 11 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

PETITIONS, APPLICATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS, ETC. 
 

#10588 
Councillor Craig Cormier, Chairman of the Public Safety Committee, reported that the 
Committee met with Chief of Police and City Clerk and advised that the Applicant is in 
Good Standing, so the Committee voted to recommend that the License be granted. 
 
On a motion by Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor George Tyros, it was voted on 
call of the roll, , eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors James 
Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Scott Joseph Graves, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh, to grant River 
Side Auto, 65 Riverside Road, a License to Buy & Sell Second Hand Motor Vehicles, Class 2 
for the license period January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022. 
 
#10589 
Councillor Craig Cormier, Chairman of the Public Safety Committee, reported that the 
Committee met with Chief of Police and City Clerk and advised that the Applicant is in 
Good Standing, so the Committee voted to recommend that the License be granted. 
 
On a motion by Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor George Tyros, it was voted on 
call of the roll, , eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors James 
Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Scott Joseph Graves, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh, to grant River 
Side Auto, 65 Riverside Road, a License to Buy & Sell Second Hand Motor Vehicles, Class 3 
for the license period January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022. 
 

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 

 
#10578 
Councillor Craig Cormier, Chairman of the Public Safety Committee, reported that the 
Committee met with Chief of Police and City Clerk and advised that the Applicants are in 
Good Standing, so the Committee voted to recommend that the License be granted. 
 
On a motion by Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor Karen Hardern, it was voted viva 
voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors James Boone, Nathan 
Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Scott 
Joseph Graves, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh, to grant the following Motor 
Vehicle Dealers Licenses, Class I, for the license period January 1, 20221 through December 
31, 2022. 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF DECEMBER 20, 2021 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Page 8 of 11 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

 
 (a) - Rob’s Dyno Service LLC., 268 Coleman Street 
 (b) - Salvadore Chevrolet, 442 West Broadway   
 (c) - Salvadore Chrysler-Dodge-Jeep-Ram, 442 West Broadway 
 
#10579 
Councillor Craig Cormier, Chairman of the Public Safety Committee, reported that the 
Committee met with Chief of Police and City Clerk and advised that the Applicants are in 
Good Standing, so the Committee voted to recommend that the License be granted. 
 
On a motion by Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor Karen Hardern, it was voted viva 
voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors James Boone, Nathan 
Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Scott 
Joseph Graves, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh, to grant the following Motor 
Vehicle Dealers Licenses, Class II, for the license period January 1, 20221 through December 
31, 2022. 
 
 (a) - Vilson Auto Sales, 119 Pearson Blvd  
 (b) - Blake Motors, 412 Main Street  
 (c) - JPJ Automotive, LLC., 78 East Broadway  
 (d) - J. Wood, Inc., 361 West Street  
 (e) - AC Auto Clinic, 411 Parker Street  
 (f) - Gardner Five Star Auto Sales, 407 Chestnut Street  
 (g) - Mike’s Auto, 251 East Broadway  
 (h) - Osagi Enterprise, LLC., 43 Tobey Street  
 (i) - Ric’s Radiator Repair Used Car Sales, 800 West Broadway  
 (j) - TJ & Sons Auto Sales, located at 537 West Broadway  
 (k) - Salvadore Chevrolet, 249 Timpany Blvd  
 (l) - Salvadore Chevrolet, 421 West Broadway  
 (m) – AutoMart, 182 West Street   
 
 
#10580 
Councillor Craig Cormier, Chairman of the Public Safety Committee, reported that the 
Committee met with Chief of Police and City Clerk and advised that the Applicant is in 
Good Standing, so the Committee voted to recommend that the License be granted. 
 
On a motion by Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor Karen Hardern, it was voted viva 
voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors James Boone, Nathan 
Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Scott 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF DECEMBER 20, 2021 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Page 9 of 11 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Joseph Graves, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh, to grant Motor Vehicle Dealers 
Licenses, Class II, to grant Osagi Enterprise, LLC., Used Auto Parts Sales, 43 Tobey Street for 
a License to Deal in Motor Vehicle Junk, Class III, for the period January 1, 20221 through 
December 31, 2022. 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS AND MATTERS FOR RECONSIDERATION 
 
#10573 
On a motion by Councillor James Walsh and seconded by Councillor Ronald Cormier, it was 
voted on call of the roll, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors 
James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, 
Karen Hardern, Scott Joseph Graves, Judy Mack, George Tyros and James Walsh to send the 
following Ordinance to Second and Final Printing: 
 
CITY OF GARDNER 
FINAL PRINTING 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 68 OF CHAPTER 171 OF THE CODE OF THE 
CITY OF GARDNER, ENTITLED PERSONNEL COMPENSATION SCHEDULE 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1:   That Section 68 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, 
entitled Personnel Compensation schedule, be amended by adding the following to said 
section of the Code:  
 
A. DEPARTMENT HEADS  
 
Position     Grade  Annual  Weekly 
 
City Collector/Treasurer   G-10  $87,893.25 
     MGL c.32,§20  $300.00 
     Total Compensation $88,193.25  $1,680.61 
 
 
B. NON-UNION DIRECT AND SUPERVISORY STAFF POSITIONS: 
 
Position     Grade  Annual  Weekly 
 
Assistant Veteran’s Service Agent    $25,000.00  $480.77 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF DECEMBER 20, 2021 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Page 10 of 11 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

 
Airport Manager      $25,000.00  $480.77 
 
 
C.  NON-UNION STAFF POSITIONS: 
       
Position 
             January 1, 2022 
        Annual  Weekly  Hourly 
DPW Business Manager     $38,513.00 $740.63 $38.98 
 
 
SECTION 2.  This ordinance shall become effective upon passage and publication as 
required by law. 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
Councillor Judy Mack informed the community that COVID test kits are available at the 
Police Department. It will be one test per residency and you must show proof of residence. 
She also wishes everyone a Merry Christmas and stay safe. 
 
Councillors Nathan Boudreau, Karen Hardern, Craig Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, 
James Boone, Ronald Cormier would like to thank Councillor Scott Joseph Graves for his 
service in City Council and wish everyone a Merry Christmas and Happy New Year. 
 
Councillor Scott Joseph Graves would like to thank everyone here working with him. He has 
enjoyed his 16 years as City Councillor. He thanks the citizens of Gardner as well. He wishes 
everyone the best of luck moving forward. Next year he would like to try to get more 
citizens out to vote. 
 
Councillor James Walsh encourage the residents to take advantage of the COVID test kits 
this coming Wednesday. 
 
President Kazinskas would like to thank everyone for another year. She thanks everyone for 
their hard work and moving the city forward. 
 
 

CLOSING PRAYER 
 

President Kazinskas led the Council in the Closing Prayer. 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF DECEMBER 20, 2021 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Page 11 of 11 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

On a motion by Councillor Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor Nathan Boudreau, it 
was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, Councillor James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig 
Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Scott Joseph Graves, 
Elizabeth Kazinskas, Judy Mack, George Tyros, and James Walsh to adjourn at 8:09 p.m. 
 
Accepted by the City Council:   
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 3, 2022 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 1 of 5 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Regular Meeting of the City Council was held in the City Council Chamber, Room 219, City 
Hall, on Monday evening, January 2, 2022.  
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

City Clerk Titi Siriphan called the meeting to order at 7:30 o’clock p.m.  
 

CALL OF THE ROLL 
 

City Clerk Titi Siriphan called the Roll of Members. Ten (10) Councillors were present 
including Councillors Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, Elizabeth Kazinskas, George Tyros, and 
James Walsh.  Councillor-elect James Boone was absent.  
 
 

ELECTION OF THE COUNCIL PRESIDENT 
 

The City Clerk announced that nominations were in order for election of Council President 
for the year 2022, in accordance with Section 5 of the Charter of the City of Gardner. 
 
Councillor Elizabeth Kazinskas announced that she would recuse herself on advice from the 
State Ethics Commission “as candidates [for Council President] are not allowed to vote for 
themselves.” She removed herself from the meeting participation. 
 

The Clerk announced that nominations were in order for election of Council President for the 
year 2022. 
 
Councillor Alek sander Dernalowicz nominated Councillor Elizabeth Kazinskas. 
 

Councillor Nathan Boudreau seconded the nomination of Councillor Kazinskas. 
 
There being no further nominations, the City Clerk entertained a motion to close 
nominations. 
 

On a motion by Councillor James Walsh and seconded by Councillor Craig Cormier, it was 
voted viva voce, nine (9) yeas, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros, and James Walsh, to 
close nominations. 
 

On call of the roll: 
 

Councillor Nathan R. Boudreau voting ELIZABETH J. KAZINSKAS 
Councillor Craig R. Cormier voting for ELIZABETH J. KAZINSKAS 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 3, 2022 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 2 of 5 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Councillor Ronald F. Cormier voting for ELIZABETH J. KAZINSKAS 
Councillor Aleksander H. Dernalowicz voting for ELIZABETH J. KAZINSKAS 
Councillor Karen G. Hardern voting for ELIZABETH J. KAZINSKAS 
Councillor Dana M. Heath ELIZABETH J. KAZINSKAS 
Councillor Judy A. Mack voting for ELIZABETH J. KAZINSKAS 
Councillor Elizabeth J. Kazinskas ABSTAINED 
Councillor George C. Tyros voting for ELIZABETH J. KAZINSKAS 
Councillor James M. Walsh voting for ELIZABETH J. KAZINSKAS 

 

Having received nine (9) votes, Councillor Elizabeth J. Kazinskas was declared elected Council 
President. Councillors applauded and extended personal congratulations.  
 

President Kazinskas assumed the Chair and expressed appreciation to his colleagues for 
electing him to the Council Presidency.  
 
 

OPENING PRAYER 
 

President Kazinskas led the Council in reciting the Opening Prayer. 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

President Walsh led the Council in reciting the “Pledge of Allegiance”. 
 

OPEN MEETING RECORDING & PUBLIC RECORDS ANNOUNCEMENT 
 

President Kazinskas announced to the assembly that the Open Meeting Recording and Public 
Records Announcement. Any person may make a video or audio recording of an open session 
of a meeting or may transmit the meeting through any medium subject to reasonable 
requirements of the chair as to the number placement and operation of equipment used so as 
not to interfere with the conduct of the meeting. Any person intending to make such 
recordings shall notify the Chair forthwith. All documents and exhibits used or referenced at 
the meeting must be submitted in duplicate to the chair as they become part of the meeting 
minutes pursuant to General Law Chapter 38 Section 20. 

 
READING & ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES 

 

There were no meeting minutes submitted to approve. 
 
 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 3, 2022 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 3 of 5 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

PETITIONS, APPLICATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS, ETC. 
#10590 
On a motion by Councillor Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor George Tyros it was 
voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President James Walsh and Councillors Nathan Boudreau, Craig 
Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern,  Dana Heath, Judy Mack, 
George Tyros, and James Walsh to refer the following Measure to the Safety Committee for 
study and report, An Application for License to Buy & Sell Second Hand Motor Vehicles, Class 
2 for Brian’s Auto Sales, located at 549 W Broadway. 

 
#10591 
On a motion by Councillor Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor George Tyros it was 
voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Nathan 
Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern,  Dana 
Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros, and James Walsh to refer the following Measure to Service 
Committee for study and report and schedule a public hearing: 
 

Church Street - A petition by National Grid to install 1 Single Owned Pole on Church 
Street beginning at a point approximately 255’ feet west of the centerline of the 
intersection of Marquette Street and Church Street and continuing approximately 20 
feet in a north direction. Install 40’C2, Pole 9 to provide power to 116 Church Street 

 
#10592 
Councillor Judy Mack would like to commend the Mayor and President Kazinskas for 
establishing this committee. There are quite a few appointments coming up this year and said 
this is an excellent committee being formed. 
 
Councillor Ronald Cormier recommends that the committee consists of one member of each 
other subcommittee since all appointments have effects on various committees. This would 
expedite and integrate the process. 
 
On a motion by Councillor Nathan Boudreau and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz it was voted on call of the roll, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and 
Councillors Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, 
Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros, and James Walsh to adopt the 
following Measure: 
 
A MEASURE TO AMEND THE RULES OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER AS FOLLOWS: 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 3, 2022 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 4 of 5 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Section 1. Rule 13(4) of the Rules of the City Council be amended by removing the provisions 
stating “Appointments.” 

 
Section 2. Rule 13 of the Rules of the City Council be amended by adding the following: 
 

5. The Committee on Appointments, composed of three members, the first named 
member thereof to be Chairman; the President to be member of ex-officio without 
voting rights; this Committee shall have oversight of legislative matters associated with 
the following: 

   
Appointments 

 
Section 3. This amendment shall take effect upon passage by law. 
 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

Councillor Judy Mack would like to welcome Councillor Heath to the team, and she is 
looking forward to working with everyone here, the citizens, taxpayers and moving the city 
forward. 
 
Councillor Craig Cormier, Nathan Boudreau, and Karen Hardern all welcome Councillor 
Dana Heath to the Committee and also congratulations to President Kazinskas for being 
elected as Council President. 
 
Councillor James Walsh said “As we begin a new two-year term, I always try to reflect on 
the experiences that those of us who've been on the council for a while. I look forward to the 
experience of those years. The opportunity to contribute on an ongoing basis, to the well-
being of the citizens of Gardner, to the taxpayers, to the people who work for the city and for 
the businesses that provide goods and services, to our community, and hope that we can all 
understand that it's our job to make all of them better. I look forward to that opportunity 
thank you.” 
 
Councillor Ronald Cormier would like to paraphrase Father Pagan this morning who gave 
the invocation at the swearing-in ceremony blessing. To all of our citizens, the elected 
officials, the officials that support the people of Gardner, happy new year and a healthy one 
to all. He would also like to welcome Councillor Heath and congratulations to President 
Kazinskas. 
 
President Kazinskas would also like to welcome Ward 2 Councillor Heath to the council and 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 3, 2022 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

wish him the best during his first term. She is confident that he will work hard and be 
dedicated to the position. She would also like to answer any questions he may have and offer 
any assistance. Congratulations to returning Councillors as well and Mayor Nicholson. 
 

CLOSING PRAYER 
 

President Walsh led the Council in the Closing Prayer. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

On a motion by Councillor Nathan Boudreau and seconded by Councillor Craig Cormier, it 
was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors James 
Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, 
Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros, and James Walsh to adjourn at 7:44 p.m. 
 
 

Accepted by the City Council:   



10598



10599



10600



10601



10602



10602



10602



10602



10602



10602



10602



10602



10602



10602



10602



10602



10602



10602



10602



10602



10602



10602



10602



10602



10602



10602



10602



10602



10602



10602



10602



10602



10603



10603



10603



10603



10603



10603



10603



10603



10603



10603



10603



10603



10603



10603



10603



10603



10603



10603



10603



10604



AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 567 OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF 
GARDNER, ENTITLED STREETS AND SIDEWALKS 

 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER AS FOLLOWS:  
 
 
SECTION 1: Section 31(C) of Chapter 567 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled 
Enforcement; Violations and Penalties, be amended by striking out items (1) and (2) out of said 
section of the Code and inserting in place thereof the following:  
 

(1) First Offense: $100 
(2) Second Offense: $200 
(3) Third and subsequent offenses: $300 

 
 
SECTION 2: Section 31(e) of Chapter 567 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled 
Enforcement; Violations and Penalties, be amended by striking out said section of the Code in its 
entirety and inserting in place thereof the following:  
 

E. Any violation of §567-30 shall result in a fine of $300 
 
 
SECTION 3: This ordinance shall become effective upon passage and publication as required by 
law.   

10604



10604



10604



10604



10604



10605



10605



10605



10605



10605



10605



10605



10605



10605



10605



10605



10605



10605



10605



10605



10606



10606



10606



10606



10606



10606



10606



10607



10607



10607



10607



10607



10607



10608



10608



10608



10608



10608



10609



10609



10610



10610



10611



10611



 
        

              CCIITTYY  OOFF  GGAARRDDNNEERR  
                      MMAASSSSAACCHHUUSSEETTTTSS  0011444400--22663300  

 
                  OOFFFFIICCEE  OOFF  TTHHEE  

              CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
      
 
 
 
     
 

    
 
     
February 7, 2022 
 
Scott J. Graves 
69 Lakeview Drive 
Gardner, MA 01440 
 
 
Re: Open Meeting Law Complaint 
 
Dear Mr. Graves: 
 
The City Council is in receipt of your Open Meeting Law Complaint dated January 28, 2022. 
Whereas the deadline to respond to your Complaint is February 17, 2022, this response to your 
Complaint is timely. 
 
In response to your Complaint, the City Council states as follows. While the email that was sent 
may constitute an Open Meeting Law violation, any alleged violation was cured as the email was 
then included in the packet for the City Council meeting scheduled on January 3, 2022.  
Deliberation of the matter occurred during the January 3, 2022 open meeting of the City Council, 
making any substance of your Complaint moot. 
 
As for the Minutes from the August 2, 2021 Executive Session you are referring to, the Minutes 
have not yet been released from Executive Session. 
 
The City Council met to consider your Complaint at its meeting on February 7, 2022.  Based on 
the foregoing, the City Council has concluded that no further action is required, as any alleged 
violation was cured at the January 3, 2022 open meeting of the City Council. 
 

 

PRESIDENT 
Elizabeth J. Kazinskas 
 

COUNCILLORS AT LARGE 
James S. Boone 
Craig R. Cormier 
Ronald F. Cormier 
Judy A. Mack 
George C. Tyros 
 

WARD 1 COUNCILLOR 
James M. Walsh, Esq. 
 

WARD 2 COUNCILLOR 
Dana M. Heath 
 

WARD 3 COUNCILLOR 
Nathan R. Boudreau 
 

WARD 4 COUNCILLOR 
Karen G. Hardern 
 

WARD 5 COUNCILLOR 
Alek Dernalowicz, Esq. 
 
 
 
 
 

  
____________________________ 
 
 
 
 

  
_______________________________===

 
 
 
 
 

10611



 
 
 
 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
 
 
Elizabeth Kazinskas 
City Council President 
 
Cc: Michael Nicholson, Mayor  
Titi Siriphan, City Clerk 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts Attorney General’s Office 
City of Gardner Law Department 
 

10611



 
 

10611 
#10592



A MEASURE TO AMEND THE RULES OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. Rule 13(4) of the Rules of the City Council be amended by removing the 
provisions stating “Appointments.” 

 

Section 2. Rule 13 of the Rules of the City Council be amended by adding the following: 

 

 5. The Committee on Appointments, composed of three members, the first named 
member thereof to be Chairman; the President to be member ex-officio without 
voting rights; this Committee shall have oversight of legislative matters associated 
with the following: 

  

Appointments 
 

Section 3. This amendment shall take effect upon passage by law. 

 

 

 
 

10611 
#10592



From: Titi Siriphan
To: Councillor Alek Dernalowicz ; Councillor Craig R. Cormier; Councillor Dana Heath; Councillor Elizabeth Kazinskas ;

Councillor George Tyros; Councillor James M. Walsh; Councillor James S. Boone; Councillor Judy Mack; Councillor
Karen G. Hardern; Councillor Karen Hardern; Councillor Nathan R. Boudreau; Councillor Ronald F. Cormier;
Ronald F Cormier

Subject: FW: Agenda Item - Committee on Appointments
Date: Thursday, December 30, 2021 5:02:25 PM

Councillors,
 
Please see email below from President Kazinskas.
 
Regards,
 
Ti
 
 
Titi Siriphan
City Clerk
95 Pleasant Street, Room 121
Gardner, MA 01440
Tel 978-630-4058
Fax 978-630-2589
 
When writing or responding, please remember that the MA Secretary of State's Office has
determined that email is a public record and therefore subject to public access under the Mass
Public Records Law. M.G.L.c.66§10.
 
 
 
From: Elizabeth Kazinskas <ekazinskas@gardner-ma.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, December 30, 2021 4:54 PM
To: Titi Siriphan <tsiriphan@gardner-ma.gov>
Subject: Agenda Item - Committee on Appointments
 
Dear Clerk Siriphan,
 
Please send the email below to the City Council.
 
Thank you.
 
Best,
Lizzy
 
 
 
 
Dear Councillors,

 
 

10611 
#10592

mailto:/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=59CAFE9601D04001B1C7B2F94CBD5CEE-TITI SIRIPH
mailto:adernalowicz@gardner-ma.gov
mailto:ccormier@gardner-ma.gov
mailto:dheath774@gmail.com
mailto:ekazinskas@gardner-ma.gov
mailto:gtyros@gardner-ma.gov
mailto:jwalsh@gardner-ma.gov
mailto:jboone@gardner-ma.gov
mailto:jmack@gardner-ma.gov
mailto:karenhardern@hotmail.com
mailto:karenhardern@hotmail.com
mailto:khardern@gardner-ma.gov
mailto:nboudreau@gardner-ma.gov
mailto:railron@aol.com
mailto:roncormier@gardner-ma.gov


 
I hope you are well and have enjoyed the holidays.  I am writing to you regarding an item that I
have proposed on the agenda for this Monday's City Council meeting.  I received a letter from
Mayor Nicholson regarding the approximately 300 appointments that will expire over the next
two years.  My proposal is to add the Committee on Appointments to oversee appointments,
as the fifth Standing Committee of the City Council.  As you know, the Finance Committee
currently oversees appointments, along with a number of other areas.  In anticipation of the
large number of upcoming appointments over the next term, I thought it would be wise for
the next City Council to consider adding another Standing Committee to oversee
appointments.  Mayor Nicholson's letter, along with this email, will be included in the City
Council meeting packet information regarding this proposed item.
 
Thank you for your consideration.
 
Best,
Lizzy
 
Elizabeth Kazinskas
City Council President
Ward 2 City Councillor
City of Gardner
Cell: (978) 337-1533
ekazinskas@gardner-ma.gov

 
 

10611 
#10592

mailto:ekazinskas@gardner-ma.gov


10595


	01-03-2022 Regular Meeting Minutes.pdf
	PETITIONS, APPLICATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS, ETC.
	#10590




